MUTATION IDENTIFICATION OF ABCA1 GENE IN SUBJECTS WITH LOW LEVEL OF HIGH DENSITY LIPOPROTEIN IN SEMARANG

IDENTIFIKASI MUTASI GEN *ABCA1* PADA SUBJEK DENGAN KADAR *HIGH DENSITY LIPOPROTEIN* RENDAH DI SEMARANG



Thesis submitted to fulfill the requirement in obtaining Master Degree

Master of Biomedical Science

ISNA RAHMIA FARA NIM: 22010111400101

FACULTY OF MEDICINE DIPONEGORO UNIVERSITY SEMARANG 2014

THESIS

MUTATION IDENTIFICATION OF ABCA1 GENE IN SUBJECTS WITH LOW LEVEL OF HIGH DENSITY LIPOPROTEIN IN SEMARANG

Arrange by Isna Rahmia Fara NIM: 22010111400101

Has been defended in front of the defense committee on August 19th, 2014 and has been approved by,

Principal Supervisor,

Supervisor,

<u>dr. Bahrudin, M.Si.Med, PhD.</u> NIP: 1976 0315 200604 1 001

dr. Farmaditya EP Mundhofir, M.Si.Med, PhD. NIP: 1981 0425 200812 1 002 4

Recognition,
Head of Master's Degree Program in Biomedical Science
Faculty of Medicine Diponegoro University

<u>Prof. DR. dr. Tri Nur Kristina, DMM, M.Kes</u> NIP. 1959 0527 198603 2 001

DECLARATION

I hereby declare that this thesis is my own work and has not been submitted in any form for another degree or diploma at any university or other institution of tertiary education, there are no elements belonging plagiarism forth in Decree No. 17 of 2010. Information derived from the published or unpublished work of others has been acknowledged in the text and a list of reference is given.

Semarang, August 2014

Isna Rahmia Fara

CURRICULUM VITAE

A. Personal Data

Name : Isna Rahmia Fara

Sex : Female

Nationality : Indonesian

Place & Date of Birth : Banjarnegara, August 10th 1984

Last Degree : Medical Doctor

Status : Married

Address : Griya Bukit Mas, Jl. Bukit Seruni No.14 Semarang 50263

Mobile Phone 0821 2244 0288

Email : <u>isnafara@gmail.com</u>

B. Educational Background

1988 – 1989	TK SD Siliwangi 01 Semarang (Kindergarten School)
1989 – 1990	SD Negeri Gembongan 01 Banjarnegara (Elementary
School)	
1990–1992	SD Negeri Krandegan 01 Banjarnegara (Elementary
School)	
1992 – 1996	SD Negeri Kebondalem 01 Pemalang (Elementary School)
1996 – 1997	SMP Negeri 02 Pemalang (Junior High School)
1997 – 1999	SMP Negeri 30 Semarang (Junior High School)
1999 - 2002	SMU Negeri 1 Semarang (Senior High School)
2002 - 2003	Program Study Bachelor of Major Public Health of
	Diponegoro University Semarang (resigned)
2003 - 2008	Bachelor of Medicine, Medical Faculty of Sultan Agung
	Islamic University Semarang
2008 - 2010	Medical Doctor, Medical Faculty of Sultan Agung Islamic
	University Semarang

2012 – present Post Graduate Program Diponegoro University, Master in Biomedical Science, Majoring in Genetic Counseling

Training and Courses

July 2	2010	Professional Exchange IFMSA (International Federation of
		Medical Student Association) Oncology Departement Szeged
		University, Hungary - participant
2011		Advanced Cardiac Life Support Course – participant
		Occupational Health and Safety Body (Hiperkes) - participant
2012		10th Medical Genetic Course: From Basic to Clinic - participant
		Workshop on Neurogenetics - participant
		Cilliary Dysfunction in Developmental Abnormalities an Diseases
		Symposium - participant
2013		11th Medical Genetic Course: From Basic to Clinic – committee
		Seminar on Cardiogenetic - committee
		3rd International Seminar on Autism and Fragile-X Syndrome -
		committee
		Workshop on Behavioural Therapy and Home Training for Autism
		- committee
2014		12 th Medical Genetic Course: From Basic to Clinic – committee
		Seminar on Infertility - participant

C. Working Experiences

May – September 2010	General Practitioner (GP) in Tembalang
Clinic	Semarang
September 2010 – 2011	GP in 24 hours Clinic JMC Group Bogor
May – June 2011	GP for Medical Check Up Nutrifood
	Company at Prodia Bogor
November 2011 – 2012	GP in Emergency Room Kensaras Hospital,
	Kabupaten Semaran

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

It is a pleasure to express my gratitude to everyone who have given me not just the opportunity but also all the supports I needed to complete my study and this thesis. My utmost gratitude goes to my teacher and supervisor, Prof. Dr. Sultana MH Faradz, PhD for her endless guidance, patience, and support through out this master program, start from the very beginning until I finished this thesis, despite her own tight and important schedule. I wish to express my heartfelt gratitude to dr. Bahrudin, M.Si Med, PhD for his time, patience, and guidance in guiding me in writing this thesis. Thank you as well to dr. Farmaditya EP Mundhofir, M.Si.Med, PhD for his time, patience, and guiding me in writing this thesis.

This research was conducted in CEBIOR would have not been possible without the research grant from PNBP UNDIP. I wish to thank dr. Shodiqur Rifqi, Sp.JP(K), dr. Bahrudin, M.Si.Med, PhD, dr. M. Ali Sobirin, PhD, dr. Tri Indah Winarni, M.Si Med, PhD, dr. Ferdy Kurniawan C, M.Si.Med and dr. Hesty Wahyuningsih, M.Si Med for for their helps and big supports during this research. I wish to thank Prof. Ichiro Hisatome for allowing us to do sequencing at the Division of Functional Genomics Research Center for Bioscience and Technology Tottori University Japan. I also thankful to dr. Nani Maharani, MSi.Med for helping us to do the sequencing process.

I would also like to thank all the staff of the Center for Biomedical Research (CEBIOR), Semarang, Central Java, Indonesia, Dwi Kustiani, Inthus Apriasa, Lusi Suwarsi, Rita Indriati, Wiwik Lestari, Evi Nurwulan, for their assistance during my study and my work on the laboratory.

I wanted to thank all the students of Batch 6 of Masters in Biomedical Science majoring in Genetic Counseling, Ziske Maritska, Hesty Wahyuningsih, Almira Zada, An Nisaa Utami Tihnulat, Ariestya Indah Permata Sari, Donny Nauphar, Gara Samara Brajadenta, Stefani Harum Sari, Venty Muliana Sari and Zukhrofi Muzar. I could never asked for a better batch. Your companion, support, and help has been a source of inspiration for me to complete my study and finish this thesis.

My utmost and heartfelt gratitude goes to my dearly beloved parents, dr. H. Masrifan Djamil, MPH, MMR and Ismiati Arini, SH for all the unconditional love and limitless support. Countless thanks to my dearest husband Rizka Kautsar, ST and my beloved daughter Sofia Azzahra Kautsar for their endless love, caring and patience that I can never redeem everything you have done for me, and never can I thank you enough. I would like to thank also to my dearest siblings: M. Fikri Diponegoro, S.Sos and Isma Sakti Haninaila, S.I.Kom for their endless prayers and supports.

I would like to thank all of the patients that were participated in this research. This research would not be possible without your involvement and cooperation.

This opportunity to join the Master's Degree, and to have my research conducted in Indonesia would have not been possible without the fellowship from Biro Perencanaan Kerjasama Luar Negeri (BPKLN), Ministry of Education, Indonesia, especially DR. AB Susanto, MSc. As the Beasiswa Unggulan program coordinator. I would also like to thank all of the Master's Degree and Fellowship coordinators, especially Prof. Dr. Sultana MH Faradz, PhD, dr. Tri Indah Winarni, M.Si.Med, PhD and Mrs. Ardina Aprilani for all their hardwork.

CONTENTS

TITLE	i
APPROVAL	SHEETii
DECLARAT	TIONiii
CURRICUL	UM VITAEiv
ACKNOWL	EDGEMENTvi
CONTENTS	ix
ABBREVIA	TIONxii
LIST OF TA	ABLESxiv
LIST OF FI	GURESxv
LIST OF AF	PPENDICESxvi
GLOSSARY	zxvii
ABSTRACT	(ENGLISH)xviii
ABSTRAK ((BAHASA INDONESIA)xix
CHAPTER 1	1 LITERATURE REVIEW
1.1 Bac	ekground1
1.2 Res	search Question
1.2.1	General Research Question
1.2.2	Specific Research Question
1.3 Res	search Purposes
1.3.1	General Purposes
1.3.2	Specific Purposes
1.4 Res	search Benefit 5

1.5 Originality	6
CHAPTER 2 LITERATURE REVIEW	7
2.1 High Density Lipoprotein	7
2.2 The Etiology of Low HDL-C Level.	11
2.3 <i>ABCA1</i> Gene	
2.4 Mutation Identification by High Res	solution Melting15
CHAPTER 3 THEORETICAL SCHEM	E AND CONCEPTUAL SCHEME18
3.1 Theoretical Scheme	
3.2 Conseptual Scheme	18
4.1. Research Aspects	
4.1.1 Research Field	
4.1.2 Research Location	19
4.1.3. Research Period	
4.1.4 Research Design	
4.2 Material	19
4.2.1 Population	19
4.2.2. Samples	20
4.2.2.1 Inclusion Criteria	20
4.2.2.2 Exclusion Criteria	20
4.2.2.3 Subject Selection	20
4.2.2.4. Clinical Examination	20
4.2.2.5 Sample Estimation	21
4.3. Methods	22
4.3.1 Sample Collection	22

4.3.2. Laboratory Methods	23
4.3.2.1 Primer Design	23
4.3.2.2 DNA Extraction	25
4.3.2.3 Amplification and High Resolution Melting	26
4.3.2.4 Curve Analysis	27
4.3.2.5 DNA Sequencing	28
4.3.2.6 Mutation Analysis	28
4.3.2.6 Prediction of pathogenic mutation	28
4. 4. Research Variables	28
4. 5. Operational Definitions	29
4. 6. Data Analysis	29
4. 7. Research Flow	30
4. 8. Research Ethics	31
CHAPTER 5 RESULT	32
5.1. Sample Characteristics	
5.2. Mutation Analysis	35
CHAPTER 6 DISCUSSION	52
CHAPTER 7 CONCLUSION AND FUTURE DIRECTION	
7.1. Conclusion	58
7.2. Future Direction	59
SUMMARY	60
REFFERENCES	62
APPENDIX	66

ABBREVIATION LIST

APOA1 : Apolipoprotein A1

ABCA1 : Adenosine triphosphate-binding cassette transporter subfamily A

member 1

ABCG1 : Adenosine triphosphate-binding cassette transporter subfamily G

member 1

ABCG4 : Adenosine triphosphate-binding cassette transporter subfamily G

member 4

CAD : Coronary artery disease

CETP : Cholesterylester transfer protein

CM : Chylomicron

dsDNA : Double stranded deoxyribonucleic acid

EL : Endothelial lipase

FHA : Hypoalphalipoproteinemia

HL : Hepatic lipase

HDL-C : High density lipoprotein cholesterol

HRM : High resolution melting

IDL : Intermediate density lipoprotein

IHD : Ischemic heart disease

LCAT : Lecithincholesterol acyltransferase

LDL : Low density lipoprotein

LPL : Lipoprotein lipase

PON1 : Paraoxonase I

PLTP : Phospholipid transfer protein

RCT : Reverse cholesterol transport

SR-BI : Scavenger receptor class B member 1

ssDNA : Single stranded deoxyribonucleic acid

UTR : Untranslated region

VLDL : Very low density lipoprotein

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1	List of previous studies about identification of <i>ABCA1</i> gene mutation	6
Table 2	List of primer ABCA1 gene	3
Table 3	The thermal cycle of qPCR-HRM of ABCA1	
	gene	7
Table 4	Demographic data of the subject with low HDL-C level3	3
Table 5	Correlation between HDL level and smoking, DM, and BMI 3	4
Table 6	List of all mutation, protein change, Sift prediction, AGVGD,	
	reference 3	5
Table 7	Polymorphisms of exon 16	8
Table 8	Polymorphisms of exon 2	1
Table 9	Association between polymorphism of exon 2 and level of HDL-C 4	1
Table 10	Association between polymorphism of exon 2 and level of HDL-C in	
	+378G/G and +378G>C genotype4	2
Table 11	Polymorphisms of exon 14	7
Table 12	Polymorphisms of exon 15	9
Table 13	Association between polymorphism of exon 2 and level of HDL-C 4	9
Table 14	Polymorphisms of exon 415	1

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1	Reverse Cholesterol Transport	9
Figure 2	Normalized melting curve	6
Figure 3	DNA fragment heterozygosity	6
Figure 4	Example of HRM curve analysis	17
Figure 5	Polymorphism in amplicon exon 16 of ABCA1 gene in subject with	
	low HDL-C level	36
Figure 6	Normalized graph of exon 16	37
Figure 7	Polymorphism at amplicon exon 2 of ABCA1 gene in subject with low	
	HDL-C level3	38
Figure 8	Polymorphism at amplicon exon 2 of ABCA1 gene in subject with low	
	HDL-C level	39
Figure 9	Normalized graph of exon 2	10
Figure 10	Polymorphism at amplicon exon 9 of ABCA1 gene in subject with low	
	HDL-C level4	13
Figure 11	Polymorphism at amplicon exon 9 of ABCA1 gene in subject with low	
	HDL-C level4	14
Figure 12	Normalized graph of exon 9	14
Figure 13	Polymorphism at amplicon exon 14 of ABCA1 gene in subject with	
	low HDL-C level	15
Figure 14	Normalized graph of exon 14	16
Figure 15	Polymorphism in exon 15 of ABCA1 gene in subject with low HDL-C	
	level	17
Figure 16	Normalized graph of exon 15	18
Figure 17	Polymorphism at amplicon exon 41 of ABCA1 gene in subject with	
	low HDL-C level	50
Figure 18	Normalized graph of exon 41	50

LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix 1	Ethical Clearance	65
Appendix 2	Informed Consent	66
Appendix 3	List of sequence exon 1-50 ABCA1 gene	69
Appendix 4	Pedigree of ID sample no.31 (Female, 46 yo)	78
Appendix 5	Article Thesis	80

GLOSSARY

Low level of High-Density Lipoprotein: Level of high density lipoprotein cholesterol in the peripheral blood after 8 hours of fasting with level of concentration less than 40 mg/dL

ABCA1 gene: Gene which encodes adenosine triphosphate-cassette binding transporter subfamily A member 1 which is located at chromosome 9q31.1. This gene has 149 kb length and contains 50 exons that works as a cholesterol efflux pump in the celluler lipid removal pathway

DNA : Deoxyribonucleic acid is a molecule that encodes the genetic instructions used in the development and functioning of all known living organisms.

Mutation : The alteration of DNA sequence

Exon : A part of gene which has a function as coding sequence

Intron : A part of gene which has a function as non-coding sequence

HRM : High resolution melting (HRM) is a molecular technique which can detect genetic variations in the DNA fragment based on the differences of melting point (Tm) displayed in curve analysis that shows aberrant curve samples

Sequencing: A method to determine the nucleotide order of a given DNA fragment

Wild type : The most common phenotype in a species particular natural population

Homozygous: A similar sequence in both of the double stranded DNA

Heterozygous: A dissimilar sequence in both of the double stranded DNA

ABSTRACT

MUTATION IDENTIFICATION OF *ABCA1* GENE IN SUBJECTS WITH LOW LEVEL OF HIGH DENSITY LIPOPROTEIN IN SEMARANG

Background: The crucial part of HDL metabolism for protection against development of atherosclerosis is generally attributed to its role in reverse cholesterol transport, and *ABCA1* gene is a key element to this process. *ABCA1* gene mutation comprises about 15% of low HDL-C level cases. The purpose of this study was to identify the predicted pathogenic mutation of *ABCA1* gene in subject with low level of high density lipoprotein.

Methods: Blood samples were taken from 42 subjects with low HDL-C level (<40mg/dL). Analysis of mutation screening for ABCA1 gene was done by using high resolution melting (HRM) technique. The aberrant samples were confirmed by DNA sequencing. Alamut software was used to predict pathogenic mutation. **Results**: Subjects were consisted of 24 (57,1%) males and 18 (42.9%) females. The secondary risk factors which may influence the level of HDL-C were age, gender, smoking, diabetes mellitus, body mass index, menopause, hypertension, and CAD were not significant different to HDL-C level at each group. Nine polymorphisms were identified. One variant found in 5'UTR known was c.-76dup (rs1799777). Three variants were identified in intron, i.e., c.+378G>C (rs1800978), c.814-14dup (<u>rs2067484</u>) and c.1892+24T>A (rs4743763). Four variants found as synonymous substitutions were c.936C>T (rs2274873), c.948G>A (<u>rs2246841</u>), c.2040C>A (rs2853579), and c.5586G>A. A variant c.2311G>A (rs2066718) was predicted deleterious. We found no symptoms or other similar condition from the family in Pedigree analysis of this subject. The c.5586G>A was a novel variant, while the rest were already reported in the SNP database.

Conclusion: Nine of *ABCA1* variant were identified in this study, it consists of 8 reported SNP and 1 novel variant c.5586G>A. One variant known as missense substitution c.2311G>A was predicted pathogenic. No risk factors were significant different to influence the low level of HDL-C.

Keywords: Low HDL-C level, ABCA1 gene, HRM, Sequencing

ABSTRAK

IDENTIFIKASI MUTASI GEN *ABCA1* PADA SUBJEK DENGAN KADAR *HIGH DENSITY LIPOPROTEIN* RENDAH DI SEMARANG

Latar Belakang: Peranan terpenting metabolisme HDL dalam proteksi terhadap aterosklerosis dihubungkan dengan perannya dalam proses *reverse cholesterol transport*, dan gen *ABCA1* merupakan elemen terpenting pada proses tersebut. Mutasi gen *ABCA1* terjadi sekitar 15% pada kasus kadar HDL-C rendah. Tujuan penelitian ini adalah untuk mengidentifikasi mutasi yang diduga patogenik pada gen *ABCA1* pada subjek dengan kadar HDL-C rendah.

Metode: Sampel darah diambil dari 42 subjek dengan kadar HDL-C rendah (<40mg/dL), lalu dilakukan skrining mutasi gen *ABCA1* dengan menggunakan teknik *high resolution melting* (HRM). Sampel yang mempunyai variasi kurva dikonfirmasi dengan DNA sekuensing. Analisis mutasi patogenik menggunakan software Alamut.

Hasil: Subyek penelitian terdiri dari 24 (57,1%) laki-laki dan 18 (42.9%) perempuan. Faktor resiko yang dapat mempengaruhi terhadap kadar HDL-C adalah umur, gender, merokok, diabetes melitus *body mass index*, menopause, hipertensi dan *CAD* mepunyai kadar HDL-C yang tidak berbeda secara signifikan pada tiap kelompok. Diidentifikasi 9 polimorfisme yaitu, satu varian terdapat di 5'*UTR* c.-76dup (<u>rs1799777</u>), tiga varian ditemukan di intron, c.+378G>C (rs1800978), c.814-14dup (<u>rs2067484</u>) dan c.1892+24T>A (rs4743763), empat varian adalah *synonymous substitutions* c.936C>T (rs2274873), c.948G>A (<u>rs2246841</u>), c.2040C>A (rs2853579), c.5586G>A, dan satu varian c.2311G>A (<u>rs2066718</u>) diprediksi *deleterious*, tidak ditemukan kondisi atau gejala yang mirip pada keluarga lainnya pada analisa *Pedigree*. c.5586G>A merupakan varian baru, sedangkan yang lain telah dilaporkan di *SNP database*.

Kesimpulan: Penelitian ini mengidentifikasi 9 varian *ABCA1* terdiri dari 8 variant SNP yang telah dilaporkan dan 1 varian baru yaitu c.5586G>A. Varian *missense substitution* c.2311G>A diprediksi patogenik. Tidak ditemukan faktor resiko yang berpengaruh secara signifikan pada subjek dengan kadar HDL rendah.